
 

Neuadd Cyngor Ceredigion, Penmorfa, 
Aberaeron, Ceredigion SA46 0PA 

ceredigion.gov.uk 
 

 

1 
 

09/03/2023 
 
 
 
 
 

Dear Sir / Madam 
 
I write to inform you that a Meeting of the Licencing Committee will be held HYBRID 
- NEUADD CYNGOR CEREDIGION, PENMORFA, ABERAERON / REMOTELY VIA 
VIDEO CONFERRENCE on Thursday, 16 March 2023 at 9.30 am for the transaction 
of the following business: 
  
1.   Apologies  

  
2.   Disclosure of personal / prejudicial interests  

  
3.   To elect a Chairman for the Committee for the remaining 2022/23 and 

2023/24municipal year  
  

4.   To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting of the Licensing Committee 
held on 06 October 2022  and to consider any matters arising from 
those Minutes (Pages 3 - 4) 
  

5.   General Update (Pages 5 - 14) 
  

6.   Report on Martyn's Law - Protect Duty (Pages 15 - 18) 
 

 
 

Members are reminded to sign the Attendance Register 
 

A Translation Services will be provided at this meeting and those present are 
welcome to speak in Welsh or English at the meeting. 

 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Miss Lowri Edwards 
Corporate Lead Officer: Democratic Services 
 
To:  Chairman and Members of Licencing Committee 
 The remaining Members of the Council for information only. 

Public Document Pack

http://www.ceredigion.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

Minutes of the Meeting of LICENCING COMMITTEE 
held Hybrid - Neuadd Cyngor Ceredigion, Penmorfa, Aberaeron / remotely via video 

conference on Thursday, 06 October 2022 
  

 
PRESENT;  Councillor Euros Davies (Chair), Councillors Elaine Evans, Eryl Evans, 
Keith Evans Paul Hinge, Gwyn James and John Roberts  
 
Also in attendance:  
 
Officers in attendance:   Mr Alun Williams – Corporate Lead Officer – Policy & 
Performance, Mrs Carwen Evans – Corporate Manager, Public Protection , Policy 
and Performance, Mr Gareth Rees – Senior Licensing Officer,  Mrs Dana Jones, 
Democratic and Standards Officer 
 

(9:30am-10:20am) 
 

 
 

1 Introduction 
The Chair welcomed all Members to the meeting. 
 
Apologies 
Councillor Steve Davies, Endaf Edwards and Caryl Roberts apologised for 
their inability to attend the meeting. 
 
Councillor Amanda Edwards apologised for her inability to attend the 
meeting as she was on other Council duties.  
 

2 Disclosure of Personal/Prejudicial Interest 
Councillor Euros Davies declared a personal interest in Temporary Event 
Notices.  
 

3 To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting of the Licensing Committee held 
on 14 July 2022 and to consider any matters arising from those Minutes 
It was RESOLVED to confirm as a true record the minutes of the meeting of 
the Committee held on the 14 July 2022 subject to noting that Councillor 
Paul Hinge had tendered his apologies. 
 
Matters arsing 
6(iii) It had been confirmed that a letter had been sent to the Gambling 
commission. It was reported that they had informed Officers that these 
comments should be submitted when the next consultation would be held by 
the Department for Digital, Culture, Media & Sport (DCMS) 
 
 

4 General Update 
Consideration was given upon the Report on the General update. The report 
had been presented in order to update Members on relevant matters, with 
regard to the Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling Act 2005. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



 

2 
 

The following update was provided on Licensing Act 2003 Associated 
Matters:- 

• Eisteddfod Tregaron 2022 
• Contested Applications (Reviews/Appeals) 
• Temporary Event Notices 

 
In relation to the Gambling Act 2005 Associated Matters, the following was 
updated:- 
 

• Gambling Act Review White Paper 
 

 
It was AGREED to  
(i) note the report for information;  
(ii) that the comments of concerns raised by Members in relation to the 
issues for disabled visitors/parents to the Eisteddfod would be passed on to 
the Officers in the Eisteddfod to address prior to the next Eisteddfod; and 
(iii) to note that the next consultation in relation to Gambling Act would be 
circulated as the norm via the Councils Facebook and press avenues  
 
Confirmed at the Meeting of the Licencing Committee held on 16 March 
2023 

 
Chairman:   

 
Date:   

Page 4



c 
CEREDIGION COUNTY COUNCIL 
  
Report to: Licensing Committee (Statutory Committee) 
  
Date of meeting: 16 March 2023 
  
Title: General Update 
  
Purpose of the report: For information 
  
 
Background  
 
Members will be aware that this meeting is convened to review and discuss the 
implementation and progress of the Licensing Act 2003, together with any ancillary 
matters arising from responsibilities with which this particular Committee is charged. 
Such ancillary matters include the Gambling Act 2005. 
 
  
Licensing Act 2003 Associated Matters 
 
Contested Applications (Reviews/Appeals) 
Since the last Licensing Committee, there has been three Licensing sub-committee 
hearings held - see Appendix A. 
 
 
Licensing SAVI (Security and Vulnerability Initiative) 
 
Presentation by Gareth Rees – Senior Licensing Officer 

Licensing SAVI is a Police-owned not for profit organisation. It was developed following 
a request by the Home Office.  It has developed a self-assessment tool designed to 
help the owners and operators of licensed premises provide a safe and secure 
environment for their managers, staff, customers and local communities.  It does this 
by providing personalised advice and recommendations, many of which will assist 
businesses in working closely with Responsible Authorities and comply with the 
Licensing Act 2003, promoting its four Licensing Objectives: 

• The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
• Public Safety 
• The Prevention of Public Nuisance 
• The Protection of Children from Harm 

There will be no financial cost to the Authority and the Licensing Service has agreed 
to work in partnership with Dyfed-Powys Police licensing colleagues to support the 
scheme locally. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



Once a business signs up to the scheme and inputs their business model, opening 
times, licensable activities etc they will receive bespoke advice and their assessment 
will be tailored to their particular business model.  

The resources available to them will include: 

• Counter Terrorism security advice for licensed premises. 
• Premises female safe action plan. 
• Spiking advice for venues and customers. 
• Age verification policies. 
• Child Sexual Exploitation policies. 
• Dispersal policies.  
• Drugs policies. 
• Crime scene preservation guides.  

One of the key factors that differentiates Licensing SAVI is that it has been devised 
and developed by the Police Service via Police Crime Prevention Initiatives (PCPI), 
who work closely with Local Authorities throughout the UK to reduce crime and the 
fear of crime. As such, Licensing SAVI is uniquely placed to deliver a joined-up and 
consistent approach to creating safe and secure licensed premises across England 
and Wales. 

The benefits of using Licensing SAVI are: 

• It will provide businesses with the latest advice and risk assessments for 
operating and communicable diseases.  

• It will provide information on effective management practices and operational 
security 

• It will demonstrate compliance with Licensing Act 2003 
• It will help prioritise improvements, build upon areas of existing good practice 

and ensure highest levels of safety and security are achieved.  
• Help businesses prioritise improvements, build on good practice and further 

raise safety and security standards 
• Businesses will be able to apply for Accreditation and Licensing SAVI award, 

which can be used to promote the safety of businesses.  

Successful business will be able to display the Licensing SAVI award in a similar 
fashion to the food rating scheme (the top award achievable is 5 stars). Accreditation 
will last for 12 months after which it will have to be re-applied for. 
 
 
Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of Licensing Act 2003 
 
The Home Office issued the latest version of the Revised Guidance issued under 
section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003.  It is a revision to the 2018 guidance and not a 
major overhaul of it.  Like previous versions of the guidance, it took effect as soon as it 
was published, but does not have retrospective effect, so applications made on or after 
20 December 2022 are subject to the 2022 guidance and those made before that date 
remain subject to the 2018 version. 

Page 6



The Licensing Act 2003, section 4 provides that, in carrying out its functions, a licensing 
authority must “have regard to” guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 
182 guidance.  To this effect, the guidance is binding on all Licensing Authorities.   
 
On this occasion, as the changes are very minor, licensing authorities need only note 
these minor revisions to the guidance. 
 
The key changes from the April 2018 version include: 
 

• In terms of right to work and entitlement, the revised guidance substantially 
changed 

• Lessening the burden on persons operating an alcohol delivery service to 
suggest they “may consider contacting their licensing authority” (previously 
said should”) under paragraph 3.10 

• Add a new section on “Closure Notices” at paragraph 4.83 
• Clarifying that Home Office Immigration Enforcement is nor responsible for 

Clubs (para 6.11) 
• Updates to TEN statutory limits (para 7.15) – increasing limit from 15 -20 for 

2022 and 2023. 
• Clarifying that there is no right of appeal in respect of late TEN’s following 

objection by the Police or Environmental Health Officer’s (para 7.34) 
• Clarifying that full variations should not be used to “vary Substantially the 

premises to which the licence relates” at paragraph 8.76 
• Paragraph 10.5 added clarifying that operating schedules should be converted 

to conditions which must be “appropriate and proportionate for the promotion of 
the licensing objectives” 

• Inclusion of the “Agent of Change” principle in 14.66 
• Removal of “Annex A – documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in 

the UK” 

Section 4 of the Licensing Act 2003 provides that, in carrying out its functions, a 
licensing authority must ‘have regard to’ the s.182 guidance and it is therefore binding 
on all licensing authorities to that extent.  The revised s182 guidance is currently 
available at:  Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
(December 2022) (accessible) - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 
  

Consultation – Extension of licensing hours King Charles coronation 

The Government has launched a consultation on whether to relax licensing hours 
across England and Wales to mark the His Majesty the King’s coronation on 6 May 
2023.  It proposes to make a licensing hours order under section 172 of the Licensing 
Act 2003, which would extend the opening hours from 11pm to 1am on Friday May 5, 
Saturday 6 May and Sunday 7 May, for the sale of alcohol for consumption on the 
premises and the provision of regulated entertainment in licensed premises in England 
and Wales. 

Page 7

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003/revised-guidance-issued-under-section-182-of-the-licensing-act-2003-december-2022-accessible#:%7E:text=1.6%20Section%20182%20of%20the,soon%20as%20it%20is%20published.
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003/revised-guidance-issued-under-section-182-of-the-licensing-act-2003-december-2022-accessible#:%7E:text=1.6%20Section%20182%20of%20the,soon%20as%20it%20is%20published.


The proposed extension would be for the sale of alcohol for consumption on the 
premises only and the provision of late-night refreshment in on-trade premises.   

The government considers that any national relaxation of licensing hours should not 
apply to the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises (i.e. in Supermarkets and 
Off licences). 

The purpose of any national relaxation of licensing hours to mark His Majesty’s 
coronation would be to enable pubs and other on-trade premises to sell alcohol and 
late-night refreshments to those wishing to extend their celebrations of His Majesty The 
King’s Coronation beyond their normal licensing hours over the extended bank holiday 
period. 

Licensing Annual Performance - General Report 
 
During the period 01/02/2022 – 31/01/2023 the Licensing Team has continued to 
receive and process a large number of licensing applications, renewals and transfers 
and amendments to licences. The team also received service requests from a range of 
service users seeking advice and guidance as well as complaints that required further 
investigation involving a wide variety of licensing matters that fall within their scope of 
responsibility.  
 
In addition, the team receives and processes many Freedom of Information requests 
(FOI’s), which often requires time to gather the relevant information in order to provide 
a response within the legal time frames.  A summary of the number of Licensing Act 
2003 and Gambling Act 2005 licence applications and recorded enquiries is contained 
in the following table. 
 

Types of Licences Issued: Licensing Act 2003 No. 
New Premises Licence Applications   23 
Renewal of Premises Licence   355 
Full Variation of Premises Licence   3 
Minor Variations  2 
Transfer of Premises Licence  2 
Temporary Event Notices   277 
Personal Licences (New)  51 
Personal Licence change of details    18 
Reviews   0 
Vary DPS   22 
 753 

 
Types of Licences Issued: Gambling Act 2005 No. 
  
New Gambling Premises 2 
Gambling Act Renewals 14 
Occasional Use Notices 7 
Registered Lotteries 78 
2 Machine Exemption Count 3 
 104 

Page 8



Information on the other types of licences that the team has received and processed 
during the past months e.g. taxis, animal licensing, etc., is contained in the report for 
the Licensing Committee (Non-Statutory Committee). 

 

 
Recommendation(s): Members receive this report for information. 

 
Reason for recommendation To advise elected Members of activity 

undertaken by the Licensing Section since 
the last Committee meeting and other 
relevant information. 
 

Policy Framework: The statutory functions delivered by the 
Licensing Team is a fundamental element of 
Public Protection policy framework. 
 

Corporate Objectives Boosting the Economy, Supporting 
Businesses and Enabling Employment 

 
Finance and procurement 
implications: 
 

Within budget 

Service Area Policy, Performance and Public Protection 
  
Statutory Powers: 
 
 

Licensing Act 2003, Gambling Act 2005 and 
any Regulations made under the Acts. 

Background Papers  None 
  
Corporate Lead Officer: Alun Williams (Policy & Performance) 

 
Reporting Officer: Anne-Louise Davies (Trading Standards & 

Licensing Manager) & Gareth Rees (Senior 
Licensing Officer) 
 

Date: 22 February 2023 
 
 
Appendix A – Contested Applications (reviews/Appeals) 

Page 9



Appendix A – Contested Applications (Reviews/Appeals) 
 
 
Premises: Gingero’s Coastal Coffee, Glyn Square, Church Street, New Quay, SA45 9NZ Date of Review: 18/11/2022 
Reason for Review: New Premises Licence. 
The application was received by the Authority on the 15th August 2022 for a new premises licence authorising the following 
activities: 

• The Sale and supply of alcohol – Off sales – 10:00 – 20:00 daily 
• Playing recorded music 08:00 – 20:00 

 
Consultation: On the 22nd August 2022, an objector submitted an objection to the application. This was rejected by the Authority 
as it was not relevant to the 4 licensing objectives. 
On the 12th September, the objector submitted an amended objection based on the grounds of public nuisance and also pointed 
out inconsistencies between the hours advertised on the Ceredigion Public Notice and the Notice submitted to the newspaper. 
The applicant removed the requirement for the playing of recorded music in an amended application. 
The consultation deadline was extended due to the failure to comply with the statutory advertising of the application notice. The 
deadline for receipt of representations ended at mid-night on the 21st October. 
On 21st October, following the re-publication of the application, the objector submitted a revised objection and asked to include 
the points raised in the previous objection. 
 
Mediation: Several unsuccessful attempts were made to mediate between both parties. The Authority asked the objector if there 
were any measures, they could ask the applicant to consider in order to mitigate the concerns that had been raised. None were 
submitted.  No objections were received from the responsible authorities. 
 
Determination / Outcome of Review: A licensing sub-committee considered the application 18th November 2022. The 
applicant, and the person who made the representation were in attendance.   
Having considered the application, the Panel unanimously agreed that the granting of the licence would not adversely affect the 
licensing objectives and in particular not cause or contribute to public nuisance. As such the application was granted as applied 
for with no conditions. 

P
age 10



 
Premises: The Albion Aberteifi, Teifi Wharf, Bridge Warehouse, Cardigan SA43 3AA Date of Review: 7/10/2022 
 
Reason for Review: New Premises Licence 
The application for a premises licence was received by the Authority on the 15th August 2022. 
Licensable activities applied for were: 
Late Night refreshment 
Monday - Sunday 23:00 - 01:00 
Supply of Alcohol 
Monday - Saturday 08:00 - 00:00 & Sunday 10:00 - 00:00 
Films 
Monday - Sunday 10:00 - 00:00 
Regulated Entertainment 
Monday - Sunday 10:00 - 23:00 
 
The Applicant wished to have alcohol available between hours exclusively to resident guests for consumption at the premises 
and the option to open the indoor licensed area later on New Year’s Eve and other national / bank holidays, local community or 
cultural events such as Other Voices, River and Food Festival and similar, and for occasional special celebrations for resident 
guests (e.g. a corporate client or family group hiring out the whole hotel) with last orders at 02:00 and drinking up until 03:00. 
 
Consultation: The deadline for receipt of representations ended at midnight on the 12th September 2022.  During the 28-day 
consultation period, 1 objection was received  
Mediation: The applicants offered multiple ways of addressing concerns but mediation was unsuccessful. All representations 
remained and none were withdrawn prior to the Hearing. 
Determination / Outcome of Review: A Licensing Sub-Committee heard and considered the application on the 7 October 2022. 
The Panel noted the contents of the information supplied by the Applicant within the original bundle and supplementary 
documentation and the contents of the representations made by the Applicant and the one objector, who didn’t attend the hearing.  
After consideration, the Panel granted the Application subject to the following conditions: - 

P
age 11



• That the outside area is not used after midnight on any night of the year, people drinking in the outside area must be asked 
to move indoors at midnight. 

• On the occasions that they will be keeping the bar open until 3am, serving alcohol until 2am, they must notify the Licensing 
Authority in advance. The authority may then contact the police if they think they need to notify them of the event. 

 
 
 
Premises: Jitterbugs, Glyn Square, New Quay, Ceredigion Date of Review: 28/10/2022 
 
Reason for Review:  
The application was received by the Authority on the 9th August 2022.  
Licensable activities applied for were as follows: 
The daily sale Selling of alcohol 10:00 to 24:00 - The premises would remain open an additional 30mins each day to allow 
customers to leave safely this would also ensure a staggered exit. All activities would cease 30mins before the end of the 
opening hours on the premises. 
 
Playing of live music outside 12:00 to 20:00 
Playing of live music inside 12:00 to 23:00 
Playing of recorded music outside 12:00 until 2200 
Playing of recorded music inside 08:00 to 00:00 
Plus, NON-STANDARD TIMINGS 
 
Consultation: The consultation period ended at Midnight on the 6th October 2022 by which time 2 objections had received from 
members of the public. 
Mediation: Copies of the objections were forwarded to the Applicant for consideration.  In response, the applicants proposed the 
removal of outdoor live music and submitted a sound management policy, a staff list including qualifications and experience, and 
their Premises management policy. These were forwarded to the objectors who did not withdraw the objection. 
 

P
age 12



Determination / Outcome of Review: A Licensing Sub-Committee heard and considered the application on the 28 October 
2022.  The Licensing Panel considered the application on its merits and the options available to it under the Licensing Act 2003. 
The Panel noted the contents of the information supplied by the Applicant within the original bundle and supplementary 
documentation and the contents of the representations made by the Applicant and the two objectors. 
The decision was made to grant the application subject to the following conditions:- 

• The serving of alcohol and playing of any music ceases at 11pm every night of the year, and no additional hour will be 
permitted on bank holidays or Christmas Eve as it would breach the planning permission.  

• The applicants could apply for a variation of the premises license if they can apply for the planning permission restriction to b  
removed or varied to midnight. 

• On the occasions that they anticipate busy nights for special events, etc, the applicant will complete a risk assessment to se   
security staff are needed on the door. 

• Also prior notification to the Licensing department of any of the special events by the applicant. The Licensing department ca  
then consult with the police if needed.  

 
The above conditions were to be placed on the licence as a means of preventing public nuisance. 
 

 
 
 

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
CEREDIGION COUNTY COUNCIL 
  
Report to: Licensing Committee (Non-Statutory Committee) 
  
Date of meeting: 16 March 2023 
  
Title: Report on Martyn’s Law – Protect Duty 
  
Purpose of the report: For information 
  
  
Background 
In December 2022, the Government announced details for the Protect Duty, now known 
as ‘Martyn’s Law’ in tribute of Martyn Hett, who was killed alongside 21 others in the 
Manchester Arena terrorist attack in 2017.  
 
There have been 14 terror attacks in the UK since 2017. These tragic attacks have 
caused deaths and casualties amongst people going about their everyday lives. A 
number of the attacks have been either committed in licensed premises or directed at 
members of the public enjoying themselves in the night-time economy, e.g. the London 
Bridge & Borough Market terror attack in 2017.   
 
It is necessary to better consider the security and ensure robust, proportionate, and 
consistent measures at public places to make sure that public safety is improved we 
can better prepare and improve public security, in light of possible future attacks.   
The legislation is being brought in to ensure that counter terrorism security efforts do 
not fall behind other legally requires activities. It is stated that the prioritisation, 
consideration and application of security processes and measures is currently 
inconsistent.  
 
What will Martyn’s Law do?  
The intention of Martyn’s Law is to keep people safe, enhance our national security and 
reduce the risk to the public from terrorism by the protection of public venues.    
It will place a requirement on those responsible for certain locations to consider the 
threat from terrorism and implement appropriate and proportionate mitigation 
measures.   
 
The legislation will ensure parties are prepared, ready to respond and know what to do 
in the event of an attack. Better protection will be delivered through enhanced security 
systems, staff training, and clearer processes.   
 
Which Premises/Locations will be included? 
There are three main areas it will potentially apply to: 

• Public venues (e.g. entertainment and sports venues, tourist attractions, 
shopping centres with a capacity of 100 persons or more), 

• Large organisations (e.g. retail or entertainment chains employing 250 staff or 
more that operate at publicly accessibly locations), 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



• Public spaces (e.g. public parks, beaches, thoroughfares, bridges, town/city 
squares and pedestrianised areas).  This includes event organisers using these 
spaces. 

 
It is expected that when the new legislation comes into force, it will apply to anyone 
responsible for publicly accessible locations used for purposes such as entertainment 
and leisure, retail, food and drink, museums and galleries, sports grounds, public areas 
of local and central Government buildings (e.g., town halls), visitor attractions, 
temporary events, Places of Worship, health, and education. 
 
It is proposed that the Duty will apply to eligible locations which are either: a building 
(including collections of buildings used for the same purposes, e.g., a campus); or 
location/event (including a temporary event) that has a defined boundary, allowing 
capacity to be known. 
 
There will be some limited exclusions and exemptions from the Duty. This includes 
locations where transport security regulations already apply; and those that are vacant 
over a reasonable period or are permanently closed. Those with a large floor space and 
low occupancy in practice (e.g., warehouses and storage facilities) as well as offices 
and private residential locations, will not be in scope.  
 
How will it work?  
The legislation when enacted will impose a duty on the owners and operators of certain 
locations to increase their preparedness for and protection from a terrorist attack by 
requiring them to take proportionate steps, depending on the size and nature of the 
activities that take place there. 
 
The aim is to ensure staff are better prepared to respond quickly to evolving situations, 
aware of what processes they should follow, able to make rapid decisions and carry out 
actions that will save lives. This could be as simple as locking doors to delay attackers 
progress and access whilst guiding staff and customers to alternative exits. It could also 
enable lifesaving treatment to be administered by staff whilst awaiting the arrival of 
emergency services.  
 
Proportionality is a fundamental consideration for this legislation. It will therefore 
establish a tiered model, linked to the activity that takes place at a location and its 
capacity:  
 

• A standard tier will drive good preparedness outcomes. Duty holders will be 
required to undertake simple yet effective activities to improve protective security 
and preparedness. This will apply to qualifying locations with a maximum 
capacity of over 100. This could include larger retail stores, bars, or restaurants. 
 
The government has indicated that publicly accessible locations with a capacity 
of more than one hundred people will need to undertake simple yet effective 
activities to improve protective security and preparedness.  Those activities will 
include completing free training, raising awareness and cascading information 
to staff. As well as completing a preparedness plan. 
 

Page 16



Government intended for places of worship to receive bespoke treatment under 
the duty, in reflection of the existing range of mitigation activities delivered and 
funded by Government to reduce their vulnerability to terrorism and hate crime. 
All places of worship will be placed within the standard tier of the Duty regardless 
of their capacity, barring a small cohort across all faiths that charge tourists for 
entry and/or hire out the site for large commercial events. 
 

• An enhanced tier will see additional requirements placed on high-capacity 
locations in recognition of the potential catastrophic consequences of a 
successful attack. This will apply to locations with a capacity of over 800 people 
at any time. This could include live music venues, theatres, and department 
stores. 
 

Such publicly accessible locations will also be required to produce a risk assessment 
and security plan, considered to a ‘reasonably practicable’ standard.  This will allow 
Duty holders to assess the balance of risk reduction against the time, money and effort 
required to achieve a successful level of security preparedness - a recognised standard 
in other regulatory regimes (including Fire and Health and Safety).  
 
What about locations run by volunteers? 
Charities, community groups and social enterprises own and operate a broad range of 
locations (museums, national trust sites, sizeable public venues e.g., the royal opera 
house and national theatre). Some organisations also hire out premises to others for 
various purposes.  As most locations owned or operated by charitable organisations, 
community groups and social enterprises will likely fall below the 800+ capacity 
threshold, Government considers the requirements to be proportionate. 
 
Will this affect accessibility? 
Duty requirements will vary but would for many include changes to security systems 
and processes, and how staff are trained. As such, many changes the Duty will drive 
are likely to be ‘behind the scenes’ that the public would not notice. In some instances, 
physical security features might however be obvious to the public, but they should never 
compromise accessibility. 
 
How will Martyn’s Law be enforced? 
To support the law, the Government has indicated it will establish an inspection and 
enforcement regime, promoting compliance and positive cultural change and issuing 
credible and fair sanctions.  It is uncertain, what duties will be placed upon the Licensing 
Team and/or other regulatory services until the draft legislation is published later this 
year. The Licensing team is of course expecting to receive an increase in the number 
of enquiries from licensed premises seeking advice and guidance once further details 
are released by the government. 
 
Recommendation(s): Members receive this report for information. 

 
Reason for recommendation To advise elected Members of Martyn’s Law 

and the duty it will have on qualifying licence 
holders and event organisers, and the 
anticipated impact it may have on the 
Authority’s Licensing Service.  

Page 17



 
Policy Framework: The statutory functions delivered by the 

Licensing Team is a fundamental element of 
Public Protection policy framework. 
 

Corporate Priorities Boosting the Economy, Supporting 
Businesses and Enabling Employment 

 
Finance and procurement 
implications: 
 

Within budget 

Service Area Policy, Performance and Public Protection 
  
Statutory Powers: 
 
 
 

Licensing Act 2003, Gambling Act 2005 and 
any Regulations made under the Acts. 

Background Papers  None 
  
Corporate Lead Officer: Alun Williams (Policy & Performance) 

 
Reporting Officer: Anne-Louise Davies (Trading Standards & 

Licensing Manager) & Gareth Rees (Senior 
Licensing Officer) 
 

Date: 22 February 2023 
 
 
 
  
 
  

Page 18


	Agenda
	4 To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting of the Licensing Committee held on 06 October 2022  and to consider any matters arising from those Minutes
	5 General Update
	6 Report on Martyn's Law - Protect Duty

